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WEBSITE REDESIGN - RFP#SPL-R-1508-MR
Addendum #1 – September 14, 2015



This 11 page Addendum responds to questions submitted by participants in the RFP pre-submittal Web Conference on 8/26/15 and questions submitted by the 9/9/15 question deadline.


Changes to RFP:


No changes to RFP as of 9/14/15.



End Changes to RFP




Answers to Questions

Proposers were invited to submit written questions to the Project Manager until the deadline stated on page 1. The following are answers to those questions that clarify this RFP. A number of general questions were submitted that are explained in the RFP and may not be included as specific Q&A in this Addendum. 

Additionally, a number of questions were submitted that asked for more detail and information on website content, online resources, and so on. While very valid questions, we anticipate an extensive Discovery Phase would be undertaken with the selected agency and have chosen not to answer those questions for the purpose the RFP clarification during this initial Selection process. There are many public sources for learning more about public libraries, in general. The Seattle Public Library website offers extensive information, including Mission Statement and Strategic Planning (http://www.spl.org/about-the-library), as well as annual and other reports that offer insights into Library usage. 

1) Q:  Is experience with Ingeniux required by the bidder? How much coordination will be done between the bidder and your CMS partner?  How important is it for a vendor to have experience working in Ingeniux? Is Ingeniux experience factored into the scoring of a proposal?
A:  Experience working with Ingeniux itself is not required but would be helpful.  Experience developing websites for a similar CMS is required.

2) Q:  Do you have personas to help guide the design phase?
A:  We do not have personas at this time.  We will collaborate with the selected Web Design Consultant during the Discovery Phase to develop personas. 

3) Q:  Does the library expect/anticipate the selected firm to spend much time on-site?  Is there an established minimum of on-site meetings? Can some of the meetings be done via video conferencing?
A:  There are required number of hours of onsite meetings with stakeholders at the Library during the Discovery Phase described in the RFP as well as presenting key deliverables and attending meetings as needed. There may be some additional meeting subjects that can be accommodated with either video conferencing or over the telephone.

4) Q:  What types of brand strategy deliverables and assets will be provided to us at the onset of the project?
A:  We should have full brand guidelines available at the onset design phase of the web redesign project including Logos, color guidelines, usage guidelines, tone of voice, etc. 

5) Q:  Is this the right place to get the latest information on the RFP and will you be updating the contact from Marc Ripley to Dean Nishimura?  http://consultants.seattle.gov/2015/08/10/spl-org-website-redesign-rfp-spl-r-1508-mr/
A:  Yes.  This is the correct site on the seattle.gov website to access the RFP and any Addendums we will post including the Q&A Addendum that will contain these questions along with any questions that were directly emailed to Dean Nishimura.  Also, a new version of the RFP has been posted with the only change being updated contact information.

6) Q:  Will the performance test scope be limited to the front-end implementation or will it include CMS integration test cases? If the latter, what support and/or framework will be provided by the CMS vendor?
A:  It will be front-end development only, the CMS integration will be done by our CMS vendor.  There will be feedback from Ingeniux as to whether the designs are working in tests. It will be a very collaborative and iterative workflow.

7) Q:  Can we submit an addendum or online portfolio along with our PDF or would that be disqualifying?
A:  We want your response to be in the format we describe in the RFP.  We would like to see your appropriate online portfolio as a link. 

8) Q:  If our file is larger than 10MB, can we provide a URL to download the file rather than send via email?
A:  As long as the proposal response addresses the required proposal response format, a link to download the proposal is fine.

9) Q:  How much of the website's copy will you be providing versus looking to the agency to provide?
A:  The Library will provide all of the website copy.

10) Q:  Will preference be given to agencies located within Seattle?
A:  This RFP is open to any qualified agency.  Preference will not be given to Seattle-based agencies.

11) Q:  You want guidance on SEO best practices, including analysis of SEO implementation and site metadata, can you say a bit more about what you’re looking for in terms of SEO?
A:  We are looking for website design that follows along SEO best practices.  The final website design should be easily indexed and crawled by the search engine and have a good user experience from in-bound links from search engine results.

12) Q:  You mention CIPA/COPA compliance. Can you talk a little bit about how the Library deals with this now?
A:  Because we are a government agency we have to comply with CIPA/COPA. We are very careful with how we interact with minors, what can be collected from minors, and what they are exposed to.  This will be covered in the Discovery Phase.

13) Q:  I know you would like the project to begin in the December-January period. When is an ideal launch date?
A:  The ideal launch date will be as soon as possible, but a realistic launch date will be 12-18 months from kickoff.  Ingeniux will drive the timeline for the actual implementation and launch date, through their development and testing.

14) Q:  Do you have site analytics data for your current website that you can provide?
A:  Yes, we have site analytics data that will be available to the Web Design consultant during the Discovery Phase, but we will not be providing that during the RFP period.  Prospective bidders should utilize the information contained in the Scope of Work details when developing bid responses.

15) Q:  How would you like the front end development delivered? PSD (Photoshop) files? Bootstrap? 
A:  The answer is yes, both.  Some elements can be delivered as PSDs and some elements will need to be working files.



16) Q:  Could the Library speak at a high level as to why the budget has increased since the previous RFP? Is it related to specific scope increases that you can identify, general overall complexity, or something else? 
A:  The initial RFP was for design services only.  The revised RFP includes design services, front-end development, a mobile-first design approach and requirements for a personalized user experience for patrons.   The requirements in the Scope of Work were also revised to emphasize the Library’s interest in proposers that could provide an original, high quality design approach.

17) Q:  What is the difference between the "Online help and user guides" and the help guides for "Digital Media UX"?
A:  The “Digital Media UX” help guides will address a current point of frustration for our users in accessing and consuming digital media such as e-books, audiobooks, streaming media, etc. to provide a more satisfying user experience.  Since this media is always evolving, we will want an easily updated solution that can evolve with the technology.  There also a variety of areas of the website that could benefit from online user guides beyond digital media.

18) Q:  Can you specify what "additional capabilities" means in the evaluation criteria section of the RFP?
A:  Prospective bidders are welcome to submit any additional information that highlights other skills or capabilities not specifically requested in the RFP.  Any other skills or value you bring to the project beyond what is listed in the requirements will be evaluated in the context of how such additional benefits or advantages will assist in fulfilling the project purpose and Scope of Work requirements.

19) Q:  What is your budget?
A:  The estimated project budget for web redesign services is maximum of $250,000.00.

20) Q:  As part of the deliverables you have asked for "no less than 5 design concepts for give page types..." Can you expand on what you have in mind here?
A:  This addresses look and feel / design direction.  We have provided (5) examples of page types that we would like to see (3) design concepts for.  This will demonstrate how your designs will expand to fit those various page types.

21) Q:  Do the references have to match the example projects? Or can they be different?
A:  It is in your best interest to provide references that match the example projects.  Additionally, we want to look at the references that demonstrate the work we’re asking for rather than unrelated activities.

22) Q:  Are there any websites for other library systems or public services that you particularly admire?
A: There are no known websites that include all of the Library’s desired website features/ improvements.  The Library is interested in receiving creative proposals that address the challenges described in the Scope of Work requirements in original and imaginative ways.  We have been reviewing other library websites to see how they address the same challenges we face and will share that information during the Discovery Phase.  






Questions and Answers submitted via email:

23) Q:  Will Hornall Anderson be providing any digital brand extension or definition? ie: web fonts, web styling?
A:  Brand strategy deliverables will include some but not all digital brand elements. Web fonts possibly but not web styling. 

24) Q:  Do the updated brand standards currently being developed include UX requirements?
A:  No, the brand strategy will not include UX requirements.

25) Q:  Have you done formal audience research as part of the branding process? Interviews with external users?
A:  Yes we have but it was more around general brand and product awareness. We did not conduct any specific user interviews for any of our digital products.

26) Q:  Are there any updates on the rebranding project -- progress, timing, etc.?
 A:  The brand strategy redesign is still in progress.  The Library will provide brand website guidelines before we reach the Design Phase.

27) Q:  Should we expect to receive full brand, look/feel guidelines from Hornall-Anderson to execute against during the project kickoff?
A:  The brand strategy redesign is still in progress.  The Library will provide brand website guidelines before we reach the Design Phase.

28) Q:  Are there other initiatives which will occur at the same time as this one which may influence how we think of this engagement?
A: The Library is also working on separate plans for a Market Segmentation analysis and a CRM platform installation as well as an Integrated Library System (ILS) upgrade, however, each of these should not affect the Web Redesign Scope of Work.  An ongoing brand strategy redesign initiative will inform the website redesign project.

29) Q:  Would you like us to help generate the Online Help and User guides? Or just figure out how to integrate them into a new site architecture?
A:  We are not looking for Online Help content, all content will come from the Library.  We expect the web design agency to provide the look/feel and integration plan for online help.

30) Q:  Who owns content development of the How To and FAQ content? 
A:  All content will come from the Library. 

31) Q:  Please confirm that the proposal can be submitted as a .pdf (on page 22 the RFP states it must be prepared in a Word document, but during the pre-submittal web conference it was stated it could be submitted as a .pdf). Would you like this as a single .pdf with all of the attachments converted to .pdf? Or would you like the individual response materials (cover letter, minimum qualifications matrix, etc.) submitted as separate files?
A:  Yes, we would like to have a single PDF that contains all the required documents.

32) Q:  We don’t use Word for our proposals. Can we submit a PDF only without a Word version? 
A:  Yes, we would like to have a single PDF that contains all the required documents.

33) Q:  Re RFP section 8.1: Is there a date-certain in which vendors need to register with the City?
A:  It is only necessary that the vendor selected is required to register with the City.  This process only takes a few minutes and would need to be completed upon contract approval.  While it is an optional requirement for other vendors, registration does provide a benefit in that it gives visibility of the skills/experience and area(s) of expertise offered to all City departments.

34) Q:  On page 23 of the RFP, under the request for brief case studies, you request a "narrative of the experience your proposed project lead has for the delivery of a project of similar size and scope as requested by this RFP's scope of services." It is a bit unclear if this requirement is related to the case studies. Are you looking for a single paragraph describing our proposed project lead's experience? Or are you looking for information regarding our project lead for the included case studies?
A:  Please provide a narrative that outlines your proposed project lead’s experience in delivering a project of similar size and scope.

35) Q:  What is the current list of browsers used by library patrons?  Do you have a list of browsers you support?
A:  Patrons using onsite Library computers currently view the website in Internet Explorer 9 or the most current version of Chrome.  Patrons using their own computers or mobile devices view the website in a wide range of browsers.  

36) Q:  What Operating Systems and Browsers are in use on the Library computer workstations and reflected in the usage statistics in Google Analytics?
A:  Patrons using onsite Library computers currently view the website in Internet Explorer 9 or the latest version of Chrome on Windows 7.  Google Analytics data will be shared in the Discovery Phase.

37) Q:  Which devices should usability testing be conducted on? 
A:  This will be established during the Discovery Phase, but the devices should include laptop, tablet and phone testing with a wide variety of browsers.  Testing should always include any browsers used on Library on-site computers available to patrons.

38) Q:  Are you looking for wireframes across three breakpoints or can we start with a mobile first wire frame approach and then one additional set of wireframes to cover the larger form factors?
A:  No.  We need breakpoints across desktop, laptop, tablet and mobile form factors. A mobile-first approach is fine, but wireframes and breakpoints are required for each screen type identified.

39) Q:  Is the budget outlined in the RFP for the total cost of the project, both design and front-end development, as well as back-end development? Or will the back-end portion of the project have a separate budget? 
A:  The back-end work and implementation of the design will be funded by a separate budget.

40) Q:  Will the Library entertain any proposals that exceed the $250,000 budget?
A:  Our budget is a maximum of $250,000.  Please include all costs associated with delivering on this scope of work in your proposal.

41) Q:  Would you be open to in-browser front-end prototyping to be more efficient with the budget? This would mean that designs would be evaluated in-browser, instead of in PSD or Illustrator format.
A:  Yes, in-browser front-end prototyping would be an acceptable approach.

42) Q:  Page 8-9 in the “Discovery” section mentions a requirement to “analyze website content audit.” To clarify, what content strategy work is already completed or planned? For instance, is a content inventory or audit already underway, or planned to be by the Discovery phase? 
A:  A content inventory/audit of the website is underway and will be available for review during the Discovery Phase.  

43) Q:  Since the Library “does not plan any further studies on the current website” (Page 9) can the usability studies required as part of this project be conducted on a simulation (prototype) of a proposed new design? What kinds of usage data can be made available?
A:  Yes, usability studies can be conducted on a prototype of the new design.  We have standard Google Analytics data that will be shared during the Discovery Phase.

44) Q:  Regarding content personalization opportunities (Page 9), what information is the library currently gathering about patrons?
A:  Please refer to the Library’s website privacy notice for details on patron information gathered.
http://www.spl.org/privacy/the-seattle-public-library-website-privacy-notice

45) Q:  The RFP states that significant portions of the catalog are not currently exposed to external search (Page 4). Is this a limitation of the Bibliocommons implementation, or some other issue?
A:  Yes, this is a limitation of the Bibliocommons implementation that will be explored further during the Discovery Phase.

46) Q:  The RFP states that the vendor should provide assistance recruiting participants for user research (Page 10). Should recruiting costs be incorporated into the proposal, assuming the vendor will handle recruitment?
A:  Yes, all costs should be included in your proposal.  The Library will provide some of participants but expects assistance with general population recruiting for user research.

47) Q:  Does a current localization strategy exist? How is it documented? Which languages is the Library committed to supporting?
A:  We do not have a current localization strategy.  We currently provide some content translated into six languages: Amharic, Chinese, Russian, Somali, Spanish, and Vietnamese.  This will be explored further in the Discovery Phase.

48) Q:  Can a thoroughly annotated prototype serve as an interactive functional spec, satisfying the “Detailed functional specification” deliverable requirement? (Page 11)
A:  Possibly, a thoroughly annotated prototype can serve as the detailed functional spec as long as the full functional narrative is included.

49) Q:  Can you confirm that the selected vendor can still expect a “collaborative and iterative” process with the development partner, where -- in addition to specific deliverable handoffs defined early in the project -- the development partner is readily available to answer questions from the vendor, as well as vice versa? 
A:  Yes, our development partner will be available to answer questions and work in a collaborative and iterative process with the selected agency.

50) Q:  Will the development partner be present for meetings with the Library, starting at early discovery? 
A:  Yes, the development partner will be present at meetings starting at early discovery when necessary.

51) Q:  What is the expected communications flow and project management process between the SPL, the development partner, and the selected vendor? What project management tools will be used, or are you looking for the vendor’s recommendation? 
A:  The Library expects the selected agency to have a dedicated Project Manager and project management tools and process in place throughout the life of the project.

52) Q: How can the selected vendor best collaborate with the Library and the development partner during launch and deployment, or are you looking for the vendor’s recommendation?
A:  During launch and deployment, the role of the design agency would be limited.  During the implementation phase and before launch, the design agency’s supporting role will include validation that the new site works as designed and that there are no missing required parts.

53) Q:  What opportunities might exist for continued ongoing development and support beyond the 30-days post launch outlined in the RFP?
A:  We currently have no plans for ongoing design support.

54) Q:  For the blog, you mention dynamically displaying blog content inside spl.org, but also maintaining a custom look and feel on the blog itself. You also mention that a full WordPress “implementation” is not in scope, but is a full WordPress theme implementation in scope, including WordPress PHP theme functions and customized front-end code? Will the selected vendor also have the opportunity to support these theme moving forward?
A:  We intend for the blog content to be pulled into the website.  The web design consultant will design an improved blog integration while possibly keeping WordPress as the publishing platform. This may be accomplished through integrating the blog’s feed into the website or by using a new WordPress theme or custom solution to achieve a consistent look and feel. The web design consultant’s role will encompass visual design, blog content integration with SPL.org and search results UX, but not WordPress implementation.  There is no plans for further support after launch.

55) Q:  What metrics will be used to measure the success of the new website?
A:  We look at standard audience and behavior metrics as measured by Google Analytics. We also have conversion goals for certain tasks like library card sign-up and site engagement goals (like social sharing). Inbound referral traffic via organic search engine traffic is also included as a success metric.

56) Q:  What keeps you up at night when you think about this project?
A:  Our main concerns are selecting an agency that can approach this redesign with an understanding of the Library’s culture, while always presenting the Library’s collection, services and offerings in a patron-focused way. Additionally, this is not simply an IA/UX project, exceptional design is a requirement as well.  Other than that, we have all the basic concerns: that the project will be completed within scope, budget and timeframe, and that we will end up with the very best website possible for our patrons.

57) Do you have a list of competitor or colleague organizations that we can review, and also have you identified one or more of them that are doing what you would like to accomplish from a digital perspective?
A:  Not at this time.  This will be addressed during the Discovery Phase.

58) Q:  Are there aspirational or likeminded organizations that you think are doing a great job from a digital perspective?
A:  Not at this time.  This will be addressed during the Discovery Phase.

59) Q:  The RFP references “WC3 Priority 1 Accessibility Guidelines, Section 508 of the US Rehabilitation Act”. Has SPL also discussed WCAG 2.0 A, AA, and AAA compliance? If so, what (if any) is the requirement using that nomenclature? 
A:  This will be addressed in the Discovery Phase and we will expect guidance from the selected agency.

60) Q:  Can you confirm that the selected partner for this project will develop the HTML templates and hand those off to Ingeniux?  
A:  Yes, we expect the selected agency to develop and hand off the XHTML validated templates.

61) Q:  Are the questions and answers from the Pre-Submittal Web-Conference documented anywhere?
A:  The questions and answers from the Pre-Submittal Web-Conference are included within this Addendum.



62) Q:  What is the deadline for responses to questions submitted during the pre-submittal Web-Conference and in written form?
A: Though there is no deadline for responding to the submitted questions we will post the QA addendum as soon as possible after the Sept. 9, 2015 deadline for questions.

63) Q:  Can you provide a comprehensive list of vendors who received this RFP?
A:  We do not have a list of vendors who received the RFP.  The RFP is available for any qualified vendor on the City of Seattle website.

64) Q: Have you done prior work with any of these vendors and if so please describe the project?
A: We won’t know who has responded to the RFP before the deadline for responses on September 25, 2015.

65) Q:  What is the percentage of availability the core team plans to provide to this project each week during the duration of the effort?
A:  There will be a dedicated project manager and the website redesign will be the primary focus of the Core Team during the life of the project.

66) Q:  Can you describe the ideal review cycle cadence for first round deliverables and the number of review cycles the schedule should provide?  For instance once presented is a 3 – 5 business day review cycle on first round deliverables a reasonable expectation?  
A:  As per the RFP:  “User experience demonstrated in no less than three design concepts for five page types with no less than two rounds of revisions to achieve a final design.”  
Review cycles will vary by deliverable and will be determined during the Discovery Phase.  We will make every effort to maintain the project timeline.

67) Q:  Will key stakeholders attend all first round presentations or will the SPL Core Team be required to present deliverables to another team of decision makers?
A:  The goal for first round presentations would be to have all key stakeholders present, but there may be additional internal meetings to present to additional stakeholders.  

68) Q:  Is one round of revision generally adequate for your organization to provide final sign off?
A:  This is dependent on the deliverables being presented.

69) Q:  Why are you separating ownership of the front end development CSS and the CMS development or back end development?
A:  This RFP only covers design and front end development. The design agency will be delivering UX, IA, exceptional design and the working prototype XHTML and CSS and front-end development. We will be working with Ingeniux as our existing development partner.

70) Q:  Can you clarify or describe the ideal relationship and areas of ownership between the front end vendor and the Ingeniux team?  Which vendor do you see as owning the role of overarching solution architect?
A:  All work will be reviewed and approved by the Library. Ingeniux will implement the design delivered by the web design agency and approved by the Library, which includes IA for the complete site.  

71) Q:  A Phase 3 deliverable is “working XHTML validated page prototypes”. Are you requesting standalone XHTML prototypes that Ingeniux will implement in the CMS platform, or are you requesting the Web Design Consultant to implement the prototypes directly in Ingeniux?
A:  Ingeniux will implement in the CMS platform.

72) Q:  Regarding third party service integration, it is clear that the Web Design Consultant will be responsible for designing an information architecture and a visual web design that optimizes the integration. Is the Web Design Consultant also responsible for the technical integration with third party services?
A:  The web design consultant will deliver designs and the Library or our development partner will implement the integration where possible. The web design consultant is not responsible for any third party integration work.

73) Q:  Are there any restrictions, policies or guidance regarding access to SPL patrons for user research or usability testing?
A:  Yes, there are restrictions that will be addressed in the Discovery Phase. 

74) Q:  How many unique design directions would you like to see (2 or 3)?
A: As per the RFP:  “User experience demonstrated in no less than three design concepts for five page types with no less than two rounds of revisions to achieve a final design.”

75) Q:  Based on your list of unique pages are you looking for the selected design direction to be extended to six unique layouts?
A:  The pagetypes listed in the RFP are real-world examples of how the design must be flexible enough to encompass a range of pages found on SPL.org.  The “selected” design must be extended to all pagetypes required to make up the entire website.

76) Q:  The RFP makes mention of usability testing “throughout the project.” Is it SPL’s vision that the vendor perform user testing with end-users through the project, or user acceptance testing among SPL’s stakeholders and internal team members?
A:  We expect user testing as necessary with end-users as well as SPL’s stakeholders.

77) Q:  Who will be acting as SPL’s implementation partner on the WordPress blog?
A:  We intend for the blog content to be pulled into the website.  The web design consultant will design an improved blog integration while likely keeping WordPress as the publishing platform. This may be accomplished through integrating the blog’s feed into the website or by using a new WordPress theme or custom solution to achieve a consistent look and feel. The web design consultant’s role will encompass visual design, blog content integration with SPL.org and search results UX, but not WordPress implementation.  There is no implementation expected from web design consultant.

78) Q:  What development or implementation partners will be involved in this project besides Ingeniux?
A:  Our internal IT and web staff will partner with Ingeniux during implementation. 

79) Q:  What is the development partner's expectation for deliverables needed to begin implementation (e.g. wireframes, information architecture, etc.)?
A:  Implementation requires all assets listed as deliverables from the Design Production and Front end Development Phase in the RFP.

80) Q:  Can SPL provide more clarity on the responsibilities in testing, QA, and post-launch support between the development/implementation partner and the design partner? (e.g. "Design vendor is only responsible for addressing bugs in front-end code")
A:  During launch and deployment, the role of the design agency would be limited.  During the implementation phase and before launch, the design agency’s supporting role will include validation that the new site works as designed and that there are no missing required parts.




End Answers to Questions


End of Addendum #1
No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFP are changed.
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